
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF LAKE ST CROIX BEACH 

16455 20
th

 STREET SOUTH 

WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

April 18, 2016 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Tom McCarthy, Charles W. Brown, Michelle Kline, Cindie 

Reiter, Jim Unker 
 

STAFF PRESENT: John Parotti, Kevin Sandstrom, Amy Truhlar 
 

OTHERS PRESENT: Nick Welsch, Scott Schulte, Mary Parr, Dolly Burns, Jim 

Golden, Becky Brewster 

 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER by Mayor McCarthy at 7:02 p.m. 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was said. 
 

3. APPROVE AGENDA 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER UNKER, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILMEMBER KLINE, TO APPROVE THE AGENDA WITH THE 

AGENDA.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA Roll Call Vote.  (Consent Agenda items, listed on the following page, 

are defined as routine business, not requiring discussion and approved by a roll call vote.  

Councilmembers may elect to pull a Consent Agenda item(s) for discussion and/or separate 

action)  

 

Councilmember Reiter asked the City Attorney if something could be taken out of 

the minutes that were tabled and put on the agenda. Kevin Sandstrom, City Attorney, said 

that it would be fine. Councilmember Reiter requested that the Peg Fees mentioned in the 

tabled minutes be put on the agenda as 9B. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY 

COUNCILMEMBER UNKER, TO APPROVE THE CONSENT AGENDA WITH 

THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS; ITEM 4A TO BE MOVED TO ITEM 9A, 

THE MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING BE 

TABLED, AND FOR 9B TO BE ADDED FOR DISCUSSION ON PEG FEES.  

THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  KLINE – AYE, UNKER 

– AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER – AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 
 
 

5. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

Mary Parr, 1430 Quasar Court, She is very upset about someone digging up the 

drainage pond, removing a bunch of trees between the lots, and leaving a big mud hole. 

She was not notified about anything happening, she would like an answer from the City 

about who ordered it, what was ordered, and why the private property was dug up and 

had trees removed. Councilmember Reiter and Kline along with Mayor McCarthy 

agreed to address Mary Parr’s concerns under the Engineer’s Report. 



 2 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Agenda Items) 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY REPORTS Agenda Item  6. 

Councilmember Brown reported that there were 41 calls to Washington County with 0 

citations issued. 0 animal control calls, 1 dog and 1 cat were reported lost with 0 animals found. 

 

Assistant Fire Chief Jim Stanton reported 19 calls for the fire dept., 3 of which were in 

Lake St. Croix Beach. Jim also stated that burning is currently being restricted and burn permits 

are not being issued. The only exception is prairie burns which require a variance from the DNR. 

Councilmember Unker asked what types of thing the fire dept. looks at before issuing a burning 

permit and the Asst. Fire Chief responded saying that in Lake St. Croix Beach they first look to 

make sure that the fire isn’t too big because of the smaller lots and close proximity to neighbors. 

Assistant Fire Chief Jim Stanley stated that a burn costs $25 and is good for two weeks.  

 

Fire Chief Chris Peterson reported that their new fire squad would be delivered in time 

for their pancake breakfast on May 1. It’s currently being displayed at the FDIC International in 

Indianapolis this week which is the largest firefighting conference in the world.  

 

CITY STAFF REPORTS Agenda item 7. 

                 

CITY ENGINEER PAROTTI (7A) 

 

Street Patching Update 

 City Engineer Parotti stated that RCM submitted a bid for $6,250 to complete the rest of 

the street patching.  

 

Councilmember Reiter asked the City Engineer if he was familiar with the poor condition 

of the street at Quinlan and 13
th

 to the south along the east side.  Councilmember Reiter asked if 

it would be better to go over that with the emulsion patching because it had been patched so 

many times in the past.  

 

City Engineer Parotti said that he had talked to the contractor about using emulsion 

patching over areas that have already been patched and they said that he could do it but he 

wouldn’t warranty the work and he doesn’t think that it makes those short-term patches last any 

longer.  Councilmember Reiter asked if he would consider doing a cut and patch at this location 

and the City Engineer said that it is an option.  

 

Mayor McCarthy stated that Ben was going to come back out and fill in the potholes that 

he missed for no extra charge. $2,800 had already been paid to Ben to do the potholes so Mayor 

McCarthy proposed holding off on approving the $6,250 to RCM until Ben had been back out to 

do the rest of the patching.  

 

Councilmember Reiter said that she would like to approve the $6,250 to have it done 

correctly by RCM and that she is not in favor of a quick temporary fix.  

 

Councilmember Brown thought it should they should hold off until street sweeping was 

over.  Councilmember Reiter responded by saying that it could be held off until after the street 

sweeping if they approved it tonight and that the process could happen later. Councilmember 

Reiter asked the City Engineer about what he sees happening with RCM after many of the 



 3 

potholes they planned on doing have been filled in by a different contractor without 

authorization. Would they not fill them and the bill would be less? Reiter asked. 

 

City Engineer Parotti responded by saying that the $6,250 to do the project is not valid 

anymore since many of the potholes had been filled by the other contractor.  Councilmember 

Kline asked Mayor McCarthy if he had a timeline of when the contractor would be back out and 

Mayor McCarthy responded by saying that he did not know exactly when they would be back out 

to do the street sweeping.  

 

City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom  recommended that the motion not accept the bid, only to 

direct staff and authorize the contractor’s services up to a certain dollar amount.  

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, DIRECTING STAFF TO HIRE RCM FOR SERVICES NOT TO EXCEED 

$5,250. THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  KLINE – AYE, UNKER 

– AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER – AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 

 

Pond Maintenance Update 

City Engineer Parotti reported that he did an inspection of the pond earlier that day and 

found that the work has not been completed yet but has been done as instructed with the 

exception of some trees on the south pond that they did not remove which John talked to the 

contractor about. Parotti said that at the north pond, the tree and brush removal that Ben was 

asked to do has been completed but has some sediment removal to complete. City Engineer 

Parotti went on to report that the work that was approved by Council to remove the trees and 

sediment in and around the storm water drain pipe at the north pond has not been completed and 

that he had spoken with the contractor who said that they would be out to finish the work soon. 

Pond #4 on the north and east side has some work left as well which the contractor hasn’t started 

yet.  

 

Councilmember Reiter asked the engineer what was going on with the southwest pond. 

Parotti responded saying that there’s just some small tree removal left to do there. 

Councilmember Reiter then asked about the 5 feet on both sides of the lot lines and if they are 

responsible for repairing sod that they damage. Parotti said that they should be seeding areas of 

sod that they damage or repairing them with rip-rap.  

 

Mary Parr said that no one knew that the drainage pipe was there and the City Engineer 

said that that’s very possible because it was so concealed with the trees growing up there and that 

there could have been better communication from staff to residents. Mary Parr then asked the 

City Engineer how anyone would know where the easement is on the property in question. The 

City Attorney answered the question by saying that the property owner would have to look at the 

plat map for the property to see exactly where any easements are located and that if the property 

owner is concerned about these issues it would be wise to get a survey done on the property.   

 

Mayor McCarthy asked the City Engineer if he had been contacted by the Army Corps. of 

Engineers regarding the levee and the City Engineer said that they contact the city and not him 

directly and sometimes they just show up without notice. The City Engineer went on to say that 

the Corps. has been pleased with the progress the City is making and that he is still in the middle 

of working through the easement rights issue with the one property owner. The Corps. said 

unofficially that they will be looking at these things differently starting next year.  
 



 4 

Mayor McCarthy asked if he should mow the area and the City Engineer said that it was 

fine but he should hold off on anything else until the easement issue has been resolved or we 

receive a 2016 report from the Corps.  
 

CITY ATTORNEY SANDSTROM (7B) 

 City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom had nothing further to report. 

 

Mayor McCarthy asked what the City should do about Mr. Hansen with the 2 boats and the junk. 

The City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom  responded by saying that the City should contact the 

Sheriff’s Office to issue a probation violation against him because the terms of his parole state 

that he must remain law abiding.  

 

CITY CLERK-ADMINISTRATOR SCHULER (7C) 

 

Policy/Procedure 

 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler spoke about some things she saw going on the past 3 

weeks which includes the following;  

 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler also spoke about the City’s Council’s responsibility to 

work together to create policies and procedures for the City. Administrator Schuler went on to 

talk about the lack of both procedures and policies in the last year that she has encountered.  

 The first example she presented was the resignation of the Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 

and the lack of procedures that were followed.  

 Another example she pointed to was the issue with the potholes and the 

authorization that was given without the consent of the 5 Councilmembers.  

 Another example Schuler highlighted was in regard to road bans and the fact that 

no one is exempt from road bans except for safety and welfare vehicles, school 

buses, garbage trucks, and septic trucks.  

 City Clerk-Administrator Schuler pointed to the issues with the retention pond as 

the 3
rd

 example of the lack of procedure going on.   

 Administrator Schuler said that she had not been made aware of the meeting that 

went on in regard to the retention ponds and residents were not made aware of 

what was going on.  

 Administrator Schuler then talked about her work with the City Engineer on the 

creation of a maintenance document for maintaining culverts, retention ponds, and 

ditches that is required for the Community Rating System paperwork. 

Administrator Schuler talked more about the failure of communication and 

procedure in regard to the retention pond project and stated that if the City 

Engineer should have followed up with the contractor to make sure that the work 

was being done.  

 City Clerk-Administrator Schuler expressed more concern over the fact that a 

contractor sent a bill with a bunch of service charges directly to the mayor’s home 

with his name on it for work that was done for the city. Administrator Schuler 

then said that she spoke with the contractor and they said they were instructed to 

send the bill to the mayor.  Schuler went on to say that the staff is very qualified 

and the Council needs to let staff do their jobs.  City Clerk-Administrator Schuler 

said that she has been “spinning her wheels” and wasting a lot of time and would 

like to know what the process is or should be going forward.  

 

 



 5 

FEMA Flood Mitigation 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler then talked about her exhaustive work to obtain FEMA 

buyout grants for a couple of properties in the floodplain and explained that the grant funds were 

pulled at the last minute because it was discovered that at least one of the properties was not in 

compliance.  Administrator Schuler stated that the violation was pretty serious and that the City 

had been reported to FEMA. As a result, if not corrected, the City will never again be eligible for 

flood mitigation funding or the City and the homeowners could have to pay back the monies that 

were awarded.  

 

Councilmember Reiter stated that she had addressed this with the Mayor several times 

and got the comment, “why do you have to pick on people?” Councilmember Reiter said that it’s 

not “picking on people”; it’s doing what our duties are as a City. The last grant was for over $1 

million and the City had a duty to implement that program. Councilmember Reiter stated that 

most of the homeowners went through the tough process and followed the rules but a few others 

did not.  

 

Councilmember Kline expressed concern that there was a lack of communication and 

thought there needed to be procedures as well.  

 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler stated that according to FEMA, the City of Lake St. 

Croix Beach has received more Federal funding for these types of projects than any other city in 

Washington County or in the upper Midwest so that’s why they’re watching to see if any of these 

things get completed. City Clerk-Administrator Schuler stated that she will work with FEMA and 

the homeowners going forward.  

 

Councilmember Reiter stated that all future Federal funding is at risk including the CRS 

and NFIP insurance subsidies.  

 

April Claims 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler presented the bills for the month totaling $73,593.63. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, TO APPROVE THE BILLS TOTALING $73,593.63.  MOTION PASSED 

UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

NEW BUSINESS Agenda item 8 

 

 MINIMAL IMPACTY DESIGN STANDARDS (M.I.D.S.) (8A) 
 

 

Mike Isensee, Administrator of the Middle St. Croix Watershed Management 

Organization presented on the work that has been conducted in regard to M.I.D.S. and the 

proposed ordinance for the City to follow the new standards. 

 

City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom expressed some concerns to Mr. Isensee about the 

proposed ordinance being incomplete and could not replace the current ordinance at this 

time. 

 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler explained that she is working to complete the 

proposed ordinance with its own numbering system.  

 



 6 

City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom said that he was concerned about passing an 

ordinance that was not yet finalized even if it was only minor changes that needed to be 

done.  

 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler said that she would bring the proposed 

ordinance back at the next Council meeting with finalized numbering. 
 

City Attorney Kevin Sandstrom also stated that the Council should determine 

whether the current Summary of Publication is adequate for letting the public know that 

this is a fair summary of what is included in the ordinance.  
 

MOTION BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, 

TO APPROVE ORDINANCE 507 AND SUMMARY OF PUBLICATION. MOTION 

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. THE FOLLOWING ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  

KLINE – AYE, UNKER – AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER – AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 

 

 City Clerk-Administrator Schuler reported that the LSCB Personnel Committee 

met to discuss the Deputy Clerk position and recommended changing the job description 

since a new treasurer has been contracted. They also recommended some wording 

changes to the job description.  

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, TO APPROVE THE RECOMMENDATIONS PROVIDED BY THE 

PERSONNEL COMMITTEE TO THE FULL TIME DEPUTY CLERK JOB 

DESCRIPTION. MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. THE FOLLOWING ROLL 

CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN:  KLINE – AYE, UNKER – AYE, BROWN – AYE, REITER 

– AYE, MCCARTHY – AYE. 

 

 City Clerk-Administrator Schuler reported on the pay scenarios that the Personnel 

Committee provided for the Deputy Clerk position and asked for a motion to approve 

posting an advertisement and the wording of the advertisement for the Deputy Clerk 

position with a pay scale range. The Personnel Committee based these scenarios off of 

what the League of Minnesota Cities was reporting for pay at other cities for this position.  

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, TO APPROVE $16 TO $20 PER HOUR AS THE PAY RANGE FOR THE 

DEPUTY CLERK POSITION.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

MOTION BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, 

TO APPROVE POSTING AN ADVERTISEMENT ON THE LEAGUE OF MINNESOTA 

CITIES WEBSITE FOR THE DEPUTY CLERK POSITION REQUIRING 

GOVERNMENT EXPERIENCE.   MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, APPROVING THE RECOMMENDATION FROM THE PERSONNEL 

COMMITTEE TO ALLOW THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR-CLERK TO SEEK PART-

TIME INTERIM HELP AS NEEDED IN THE OFFICE UNTIL SOMEONE IS HIRED.  

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

Quotes to Complete L.S.C.B. Back Room Making it a Work Area for City Groups 



 7 

Mayor McCarthy said that they were looking into the possibility of turning the back room 

into a conference room for committees and groups to have meetings.  

 

Councilmember Unker expressed concern about spending money on such a project and 

thought the money should go toward the garage area to get it rented.  

 

Mayor McCarthy would like to have the Council tour the building during a workshop to 

look for areas that need improvement.  

 

“Key Fob” System for City Hall 

City Clerk-Administrator Schuler reported that the lights have been left on and she has no 

idea who has been coming and going. City Clerk-Administrator Schuler then proposed installing 

a “key fob” system that will monitor who is coming and going. 

 

Mayor McCarthy felt that it was a lot of money and thought that cameras would be much 

cheaper. The Council agreed to table the issue and get more quotes to bring the price down.  

 

Roof at City Hall 

 City Clerk-Administrator Schuler reported that the skylights in City Hall were leaking 

and that she had buckets on the floor. City Clerk-Administrator Schuler said that someone from 

the League of Minnesota Cities came out and gave their approval for the City to do an inspection 

to look for water damage and submit a quote to them. The person from the LMC said that the 

roof was in dire need of repairs as well. 

 

 Councilmember Reiter said that she thought that the City was supposed to get the roofing 

contractor out every year to do an inspection. 

 

 Mayor McCarthy said that they did have the roofing contractor out every year to inspect 

until the contract was up.  

 

 Councilmember Reiter suggested calling the roofing contractor that did the prior 

inspections and having them come back out. 

 

Credit Cards 
  

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER 

BROWN, TO APPROVE THE LAKE ST. CROIX BEACH CREDIT CARD POLICY.  

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

Agreement for Assessment Services – Washington County 
  

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY MCCARTHY, TO 

APPROVE THE AGREEMENT WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY FOR ASSESSMENT 

SERVICES FOR 2016.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS Agenda item 9. 

   

Minutes of the Regular City Council meeting on March 21, 2016 (9A) (Item was moved from 

the Consent Agenda 4A) 
 



 8 

 Councilmember Reiter saw an error on page 3 “storm water retention”, 4 sentences above 

the motion at the bottom of the page. It says,”Parotti noted that there is another storm water pond 

in the southeast section of the intersection”. Reiter thought the pond is on the northeast not 

southeast. 

 

 City Engineer Parotti said that the area is heavily wooded and they haven’t done any 

maintenance there and that what’s in the minutes is correct.  

 

 Councilmember Reiter stated that on the next page it says, “Councilmember stated that 

she again voted nay on principle. Councilmember Reiter said that it should be, “nay based on 

principle”.  
 

 Councilmember Reiter said that on the third to the last page under potholes it says, “in his 

opinion, spray emulsion is a better value and that cut and patch work” which doesn’t make sense 

to her. Reiter said that she thought the point that was trying to be made was that emulsion is a 

good product and cut and patch is a good product but expensive pothole filling is the cheapest. 

City Engineer Parotti said that he meant that spray emulsion was the best value.  

 

 Councilmember Reiter went on to ask the Council if they should include the name of the 

contractor that they bought the Class 5 gravel from.  Mayor McCarthy said that it was from Tri-

County.  

 

 Councilmember Reiter said that under the shoreline subcommittee appointment list above 

the motion it says, “the boat holds the dock permit or buoy permit.” She went on to say that there 

is no dock permit in the City, it’s a boat permit. Instead of saying that a dock and buoy are 

permitted, it should state that they are allowed. Councilmember Reiter’s point is that the City 

only has boat permits not buoy permits or dock permits. Councilmember Reiter suggested saying, 

“the boat permit”. 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER REITER, SECONDED BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, 

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH, 21 2016 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

PEG FEES (9B) 

 

 Councilmember Reiter said that she thinks that the City’s fees that go to the Cable 

Commission should come from the money that is collected from cable customers to view local 

programming.  Councilmember Reiter said that it’s a lame excuse to say that we’ll lose money at 

the City level if the cable commission pays for those fees to get those 4 channels.   

 

 Councilmember Unker said that he doesn’t understand the logic. Unker said that the cable 

company does not get that money and that money is being collected by the cable company for the 

community, that’s all. Councilmember Unker said that the City determines the charge to each 

subscriber per month and they collect it and that the fee can be increased by the cable 

commission. Councilmember Unker said that the fee hasn’t gone up in 10 years. 

 

 Councilmember Reiter said that they should have been increasing it all along and asked 

Councilmember Unker who exactly the City gets this money from. Councilmember Unker said 

that Xfinity was paying those fees to the cable commission and the cable commission spreads 

that money out to cities in the area based on the number of subscribers in each city. Unker also 



 9 

said that the Council should encourage residents to buy cable because the city gets a franchise fee 

unlike satellite.  

 

Councilmember Unker said that the cable commission pays Valley Access with franchise 

fee funds and Councilmember Reiter asked why the cable commission can’t just pay for the 4 

Valley Access channels so residents can get the local public access channels. Councilmember 

Unker asked if residents should take on some of the cost with the rising fees. Councilmember 

Brown said that the cable commission has talked about paying Valley Access for the local 

channels. 

 

OTHER BUSINESS Agenda Item 10. 
 

Nick Welsch, Park Board Chair gave an update on the Flea Market and Car Show. Mr. 

Welsch also said that he was working on the Park Board’s annual report to the City Council 

which will include things like a budget and some recommendations for new subcommittees and 

provide a snapshot of what the Parks Board did in 2016. Mr. Welsch also requested that the 

annual budget go on the website. Mr. Welsch stated that all proceeds from the Flea Market and 

Car Show go directly into the playground fund. The Flea Market will be on May 14 at Pettitt 

Park. 

 

MOTION BY MAYOR MCCARTHY, SECONDED BY COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, 

TO APPROVE POSTING SIGNAGE AT THE LOWER ST. CROIX VALLEY FIRE 

DEPARTMENT PROMOTING THE FLEA MARKET AND CAR SHOW ON MAY 14.  4 

AYES, 1 NAY (REITER) MOTION PASSED. 

 
 

COUNCIL/STAFF REPORTS Agenda Item 11. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER BROWN (11A) 

    Nothing further to report. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER KLINE (11B) 

   Nothing further to report. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER REITER (11C) 

Councilmember Reiter reported that the Environmental Commission’s Recycle 

Committee met and discussed the possibility of having a clean-up day and will have a 

booth at the Afton/Lakeland Carnival this Saturday from 10:30 to 2:30. Reiter also talked 

about the Cottage Grove Recycling Center extending their hours, Tuesdays 11-7, 

Thursday and Friday 8-4:30 and Saturday from 8-2. They also recently sent out a notice 

about a shredding event and hazardous waste event coming up.   
 

COUNCILMEMBER UNKER (11D) 

 Nothing further to report. 
 

MAYOR MCCARTHY (11E) 

 Nothing further to report. 
  

ADJOURNMENT Agenda Item 12. 

 



 10 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER BROWN, SECONDED BY MAYOR 

MCCARTHY, TO ADJOURN THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT 10:02 P.M.  

MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 


